Vision 3

Unplanned Admissions -Getting Started

Outcomes Manager



Copyright Notice

© 2014 INPS All Rights Reserved.

No part of this document may be photocopied, reproduced, stored in a retrieval system or transmitted in any form or by any means, whether electronic, mechanical, or otherwise, without the prior written permission of INPS.

No warranty of accuracy is given concerning the contents of the information contained in this publication. To the extent permitted by law, no liability (including liability to any person by reason of negligence) will be accepted by INPS, its subsidiaries or employees for any direct or indirect loss or damage caused by omissions from or inaccuracies in this document.

INPS reserves the right to change without notice the contents of this publication and the software to which it relates.

Product and company names herein may be the trademarks of their respective owners.

INPS Ltd. The Bread Factory 1a Broughton Street London SW8 3QJ

Website: www.inps.co.uk

Contents

UNPLANNED ADMISSIONS OUTCOMES MANAGER - GETTING STARTED	5
Getting Started	5
What this Guide Covers	5
Prerequisites	5
What you need to do by 31st July 2014	6
Download Unplanned Admissions Outcomes Manager	7
Identify Eligible Patients	8
The Stratification Tool Applying the QAdmission Stratification Calculator	11 11
Reviewing the Admissions Risk Stratification and Register Manager Report Create a Personalised Care Plan Manager Register Access the Personalised Care Manager Register for each patient Assign a Named GP to the patient	t 14 14 15 17
Print the Invitation Letter	18

Record Personal Care Plan Offered	18
Add the Patient to the Personalised Care Manager Register	19
Aud the ratient to the reisonalised care Manager Register	15

INDEX

Unplanned Admissions Outcomes Manager - Getting Started

Getting Started

The following topics provide useful information regarding setting up the Unplanned Admissions Outcome Manager Tools provided by BlueBay for EMIS LV and PCS systems. This guide explains how to create an Avoidance Admission Register for 2% of your over 18 practice population by 31st July 2014.

What this Guide Covers

This user guide gives detail of the following:

- Prerequisites See Prerequisites (page 5).
- What you need to do by 31st July 2014 See What you need to do by 31st July 2014 (page 6).
- **Downloading the Unplanned Admissions Outcomes Manager** See *Download Unplanned Admissions Outcomes Manager* (page 7).
- Running the Risk Stratification and Register Manager Report See *Identify Eligible Patients* (page 8).
- The Stratification Tool See The Stratification Tool (page 11).
- Reviewing the Admissions Risk Stratification and Register Manager Report - See Reviewing the Admissions Risk Stratification and Register Manager Report (page 14).
- Creating a 2% Personalised Care Plan Manager Register See Create a Personalised Care Plan Manager Register (page 14).

Prerequisites

To use the Unplanned Admissions Outcome Manager tools provided by INPS you must:

- Contact your INPS Account Manager to order Unplanned Admissions Outcome Manager (this may already have been done on your behalf by your CCG). You will receive an email when the files are ready to download.
- The Unplanned Admissions Outcome Manager consists of the following:

- Admissions Risk Stratification and Manager Register Reports
- QAdmissions Calculator (chargeable)
- Personalised Care Plan Manager Register and Template
- Personalised Care Plan Manager Reports

What you need to do by 31st July 2014

Below is a summary of the DES Requirements and what must be completed by 31st July 2014.

Create an	Admissions Avoidance Register	
Step 1	Download the Unplanned Admissions Outcome Manager	See Download Unplanned Admissions Outcomes Manager (page 7)
Step 2	Run the Admission Risk Stratification and Register Manager report to identify the over 18 register	See <i>Identify Eligible</i> <i>Patients</i> (page 8)
Step 3	Process patients through the QAdmission calculator to record the QAdmissions risk score	See <i>The Stratification Tool</i> (page 11)
Step 4	Review the Admission Risk Stratification and Register Manager to view the QAdmission scores and identify the 2%	See Reviewing the Admissions Risk Stratification and Register Manager Report (page 14)
Step 5	Add patients to the Admission Avoidance Register by creating a Personalised Care Plan Manager Register (2% target)	See Create an Personalised Care Plan Manager Register (page
	 Read code - 67DJ Informing patients of named GP (mandatory for GPES extraction) 	14)
	Send the invite letter	
	 Read code - 9NS5 Personal Care Plan Offered (optional) 	
	 Read code - 8CV4 Admission avoidance care started (mandatory for GPES extraction) 	

For further guidance on all aspects of the Unplanned Admissions DES and timeframes refer to the following Quick Reference Guides:

- Unplanned Admissions Overview
- Unplanned Admissions Personalised Care Plan Manager
- Unplanned Admissions Reporting
- Unplanned Admissions FAQ's

Download Unplanned Admissions Outcomes Manager

The Unplanned Admissions Outcome files can be downloaded and managed from Download Web Files. Remember, you must contact your Account Manager who will organise for the Unplanned Admissions to be available to download.

To access the files:

Log into EMIS, right click on the BlueBayCT icon and select Download Web Files from the menu.



🕥 in the Windows Notification area



Download Web Files

- 1. A list of files available to download and files already downloaded is displayed.
- 2. Select the file(s) you wish to download by ticking the box in the download column. For the Unplanned Admissions Outcome Manager choose:
 - Admissions Risk Stratification and Register Manager •

• Personalised Care Plan Manager

😼 Download Web Files					
🞑 🥼 🗙 Delete 🗈 Admin 🛛 🗟 Downlo	ad				
Group Name	Web Version 🕈	Local Version 🕈	Status 📍	Download 🕈	Delete 🕈
Hip & Knee Osteoarthritis Referral Pathway (ABHB)	2	2	Up to date		
Pneumococcal vaccination	7	0	Not downloaded		
Seasonal flu vaccination programme	32	0	Not downloaded		
 Group Type : Practice Alerts & Lists 				,	
Admissions Risk Stratification and Register Manager	14	0	Not downloaded	1	
Carer Registers	4	0	Not downloaded		
Child Immunisations	4	0	Not downloaded		
Child Protection	2	0	Not downloaded		
District Nurse Attending	1	0	Not downloaded		
Drug Misuser	3	3	Up to date		
Housebound Patients	2	2	Up to date		
Mental Health Review	1	0	Not downloaded		
New QOF Registers 2012	3	0	Not downloaded		
Personalised Care Plan Manager	16	0	Not downloaded	V	
Prescription 4 Exercise (Birmingham CrossCity CCG)	1	1	Up to date		
Shingles vaccination programme	2	0	Not downloaded		
Violent Patients	2	0	Not downloaded		

Unplanned Admissions Outcomes Manager

- 3. Click **Download**. You do not need to log out of EMIS whilst the files are downloading.
- 4. A splash screen will appear showing the progress of the download.

Note - Templates that have been downloaded by your practice are available to all users providing that Disable User Defined Indicators is not checked for each user in BlueBayCT Settings.

5. The status column quickly shows which templates have already been downloaded to the system, and which templates have a new version that may be downloaded. Template Version numbers can be compared between the Web Version and Local Version to see if a more recent version is available for download from the web.

Identify Eligible Patients

You can quickly identify patients who may be eligible for unplanned admissions by running the **Admissions Risk Stratification and Register Manager Report**.

1. Log into EMIS, right click on the BlueBayCT icon in the Windows Notification area and select **Practice Reports**.

2. Select the **Enhanced Services** icon.



BlueBayCT Reporting - Enhanced Services

3. Click Admissions Risk Stratification and Register Manager.

2						Pra	actice Repor	'ts
Home	Appeara	ance						
QOF	Enhanced Services	SIGN	NICE	Other	Warfarin	Last Run	Templates	Attach
		Sho	W			Options	Lette	rs
	Enhanced Services							
Admissions Risk Stratification and Register Manager								
Perso	onalised Care	Plan Ma	nager					

Admissions and Risk Stratification and DES Register

4. The report shows the admission risk stratification results. It displays a number of cohort lines, including all permanent and applied patients over the 18 and those over 18 not on the Personal Care Plan Register.

Note - The report also groups patients by age and risk of admission, offering additional stratification, should you wish to use them.

		App.23		Admissions Di	ick Stratification and Depict	or Managor	٦					
	ome	Appear	rance	Admissions R	isk stratification and Regist	er manager	l					
	Q											
Pre	rint e <u>v</u> iew	Print	CSV File	Merge Indicator								
		Patie	ent List									
Patie	ent Na	me								DOB	Sex	NHS Numl
× .	Categ	ory : Admiss	sions Risk	Stratification ar	nd Register Manager							
	> D	escription :	Register (COUNT=4595)								
	> D	escription :	All Patien	ts Aged >= 18 M	NOT on Personal Care Plan	Register: (CO	DU	JN	IT=4593)			
	> D	escription :	2% Monit	or: Select "Cat	egory: Admissions'' abov	e, then click o	on	пC	Category An	alysis Icon (C	OUNT=2)	
	> D	escription :	On Perso	nal Care Plan R	legister; No QAdmissions So	core. (COUNT	T =	=2)]			
	> D	escription :	All Patien	ts Aged <18 wit	th Chronic Condition(s); NO	F on Personal	dise	sec	d Care Plan	Register (CO	UNT=138)	
	> D	escription :	Age 80-8	9 + No A+E/Ho	ospital Admissions in Last Ye	ar but + Very	H	lig	ih Number o	f Risk Factor	s for Admissio	n (COUNT=1)
	> D	escription :	Age 60-6	9 + No A+E/Ho	ospital Admissions in Last Ye	ar but + Very	H	lig	ih Number o	f Risk Factor	s for Admissio	n (COUNT=1)
	> D	escription :	Age 50-5	9 + No A+E/Ho	spital Admission in Last Yea	ar but + Very H	Hig	igł	Number of	Risk Factors	for Admission	(COUNT=1)

Risk Stratification and Register Manager

- 5. To view patient names double click on the cohort line or choose the expandicon. If you click on a patient you can use the toolbar at the top of the screen to:
 - Print Preview, Print, CSV File Print or Export the patient list
 - **Open Patient** This takes you directly into this patient's Consultation Manager screen
 - **Codese**t This option allows you to add an emergency admission Read code to the patient record
 - **Show Template** This option launches the Personalised Care Plan Manager Register Template
 - **Show Indicators** This brings up the patient's Alert Indicator popup window without having to open Consultation Manager
 - Indicator Logic This option allows you to see why the patient is on the cohort list



Patient List Options

6. You now need to run the QAdmission Risk Stratification tool on your cohort of patients. It is anticipated that you will run the QAdmission calculator on all patients aged over 18 not on the Personalised Care Plan Register. This group excludes patients who have declined inclusion and those who have been offered inclusion but are not yet on the register. See *The Stratification Tool* (page 11).

Note - Vulnerable patients under the age of 18 are not included in the 2% target, but you may want to include these patients in the Personalised Care Plan Register for monitoring purposes.

Training Tip - Select the **Last Run** option if you have closed the Risk Stratification report, but you now want to view it again.

The Stratification Tool

To identify patients who are at a high risk of unplanned admissions a Risk Stratification tool should be used. INPS provide a **QAdmission** tool which will create the 2% risk register that is required as part of the DES. The QAdmission tool will automate over 90% of the DES. To find out more about this tool contact your Account Manager. If you decide not to use the INPS QAdmission tool or use a different tool, the reports can still be run and are available to work with but will only automate about 50% of the functionality required in the DES.

Note – The Qadmissions website can be found at http://www.qadmissions.org

The Read codes used to identify the patients who have attended A&E in the last year are:

- 8HCZ.Refer to hospital casualty NOS
- 9N19.Seen in hospital casualty
- 8HJJ.Self ref to accident emergency
- 9b8D.Accident & emergency
- 9Nr..Inapp use of A and E service
- 8HE8.Discharged from A & E
- 8HEA.Discharged from AAU
- 8H2% Emergency hospital admission

Applying the QAdmission Stratification Calculator

- 1. From the Admissions Risk Stratification and Register Report, select the cohort line All Patients Aged>=18 NOT on the Personal Care Plan Register and no QAdmission score.
- 2. Click Merge Indicator.

b Pr	actice Reports		Patient List					-		23
Home	Appearance	Admissions Ris	sk Stratification and Regis	ster Manager - 01 Apr 2015					\$	0
Print Pre <u>v</u> iew	Print CSV File Patient List	Merge Indicator		Highlight the coho Merge Indicator	ort line ar r.	nd choos	e			
Patient Na	ame				DOB	Sex	NHS Nu	ımber	T	e 🔺
👻 Categ	ory : Admissions Risk	Stratification an	nd Register Manager							
> D	> Description · Begister (COLINT=4540)									
> D	Description : All Patients Aged >= 18 NOT on Personal Care Plan Register and no QAdmissions score (COUNT=4540)									
> D	escription : All Patien	its Aged <18 with	h Chronic Condition(s); NC)T on Personalised Care Plan	Register (COl	JNT=152)				
> D	escription : Age 80-8	9 + No A+E/Ho:	spital Admissions in Last Y	'ear but + Very High Number o	of Risk Factors	ofor Admission	(COUNT=1)		

Merge Indicator

3. The list of eligible patients appears, click **Select All** (or tick the box next to Mail).



Selecting All Patients

4. Click the **Calculators** tab.

🖹 🗳 🕯) P	9	_				R	legistei	•	
Home	C	alculators	Appear	ance					1	
2	23	Please	select ale			~			2	۲
	-	DES I	NVITE LET	Clic	k the	Ca	iculators t	tab.		
Open Patient	Sel	ect 🕞 Pri	eview Lette	lail Pho				Phoned]		
							Create			
🔽 Mail	۷	Patient		٩	DOB	٩	Invite Status 🔗 📍	Invite D	ate 🕈	Usual Surge
V		AKTAR, SI	EAN DANIE	L	26/08/	1995	1st invite required			
V		BODEN, A	NDROS ST	EVEN	25/03/	1976	1st invite required			
V		BRYNE, B	ERT MAX		22/09/	1957	1st invite required			



5. Choose the **SHA** (CCG area) and click the **QAdmissions** button.

😰 🚨 🖨 🖗	4)	Register	
Home	alculators Appearance		
QAdmissions	SHA North East		_
	Other Ch	poose the SHA and click the	Lough Company
	AKTAR, SEAN DANIEL	Admissions button.	Isual Surgery
V	BODEN, ANDROS STE		
V	BRYNE, BERT MAX	22/09/1957 1st invite required	-
V	DYER, ROLAND HOWARD	20/04/1985 1st invite required	
V	GIBNEY, IVY PEGGY	26/09/1936 1st invite required	

QAdmissions Calculator

6. Use the slider scale to set a QAdmissions Risk Score value to control which patient records have a READ Code and score recorded. Any scores less than your chosen value will not be recorded.



Note – If you want every patient to have a score recorded set the slider value to 0.

QAdmission Risk Score Slider Bar

- 7. Click **OK** to start the process.
- The QAdmission calculator will look at each patient and record those scores that are equal or greater than the pre-set slider value (during this time a progress bar appears at the base of the screen). The Read code **38Gt0** -**QAdmissions risk emergency hospital admission next 12 months** is automatically recorded in the patient's record along with the patient's score.

Note - The progress bar may take a little while to process each patient, depending on the number of patients you have selected. You may also see the warning *"One or more patients have a QAdmissions Warning, do you want to open the log file."* This means some patients either do not qualify for stratification or they are below the QAdmission Risk Score percentage defined in the slider bar.

9. Click **Close** to return to the Admission Risk Stratification and Register Manager report.

Reviewing the Admissions Risk Stratification and Register Manager Report

After running the Admission Risk Stratification and Register Manager report, you will see a list of stratified patients with a QAdmission score not on the Personal Care Plan Register, you now need to choose which patients you want to add to the Personalised Care Plan Register. See Access the Personalised Care Manager Register for each patient (page 15).

Training Tip - The DES requirement is to maintain a 2% register throughout the year for Permanent and Applied patients over 18. This is calculated using the register count x 2%. For example 4593 patients x 2% = 91 patients. However, the DES requires that you do not drop below 1.8% per quarter; therefore it may be advisable to aim for more patients eg 101 patients.



QAdmission Risk Scores displayed on the report

Create a Personalised Care Plan Manager Register

Patients who are identified as being at risk of admissions should be added to the Personalised Care Plan Register. To do this you need to complete the Personalised Care Manager Register Template which is accessed from the Admissions Risk Stratification and Register Manager Reports. See *Access the Personalised Care Manager Register for each patient* (page 15).

Note - As you add the patient to the Personalised Care Manager Register, the report is automatically updated and the patient is moved to the appropriate list.

Access the Personalised Care Manager Register for each patient

1. From **Reports** - **Admissions Risk Stratification and Outcomes Manager Report**, highlight the patient cohort line and click the expand icon to view the patients.

Note - If you want to view the patient's record before placing the patient on the register you can access the Personalised Care Plan Manager from Consultation Manager.

2. Highlight the patient and choose **Show Template**.

🔁 Pr	actice Re	ports	Patient List						
Home	Appear	ance	Admissions	Risk Stratifica	tion and Regi	ster Manager			
Q			Ê				85		
Print Preview	Print	CSV File	Open Patient	Codeset	Show Template	Show Indicators	Indicator Logic		
	Patient List								
Patient Nar	ne							000	Sex
 Categor 	y : Admissio	on Hiz	blight	the natio	ont and	click Sho		nlate	
🛨 Des	cription : R	eg ''''	Jinight		and and	CHCK SHO	wieni	plate.	
🛨 Des	🛨 Description : All F								
🛨 Des	🛨 Description : 2% Monitor: Select "Category: Admissions" above, then click on Category Analysis Icon (COUNT=1)								
🖃 Des	cription : N	ot on Per	sonal Care P	an Register: P	robability of Ad	dmission (QAdm	ission Score) i	in Next Year: 30-	39% (COUNT)
AKT	AR, SEAN	DANIEL						26/08/1995	Male

Reports - Show Template

3. The **Personalised Care Plan Manager** screen is displayed.

History Personal Care Plan Register Manager								
Personalised Care Plan Manager								
Current QAdmissions Risk Score:								
QAdmissions Risk Score+Calculator	02/07/2014: QAdmirskiemr	g hsp adm nx 12mth 🔔 18	3.06 × 🗽 🐙					
To Assign a Named GP to this patient:			Click the OAdmisions ison to					
Select a GP ID Code from the Drop Dowr	n Menu;	Risk Score	to stratify the patient if they do not					
For Example:		Trisk Ocore	already have a score or you want					
GP01 Dr Brown			to re-score the patient.					
	1							
Named and Accountable GP	No Data Recorded		× 🛄 📷					
Offer Patient Inclusion on the Admission Generate the Letter of Invitation Below if	Risk Register, Required:							
Personal Care Plan Status	02/07/2014: Personal care	plan offered	× 🛄 🕋					
Click HERE to Access and Print the L Offer of Care Plan should be ACCEPTED GP	etter of Invitation before Patients are Adder	to the Register and A	ssigned Named					
Personal Care Plan Acceptance	No Data Recorded		× 🛄 🕋					
Add/Remove Patient from the Admission	Risk Register							
ADD to Personalised Care Plan Register	No Data Recorded		× 🛄 📭					
REMOVE from Personalised Care Plan Regi	. No Data Recorded		× 🛄 🕋					
	•							
1								
🗢 Previous 🌩 Next 🛛 02/07/2014: QAdm rsk e	emrg hsp adm nx 12mth - 18.06	5: [18.06]	🧻 Previous Tab 🦵 Next Tab					

Personalised Care Plan Manager

4. The patient's QAdmissions risk score is displayed at the top of the screen. If it is not, then, if you have purchased the QAdmissions calculator, _you can

stratify the patient from here by selecting the QAdmissions icon in the place the patient on the register and fulfil the DES requirement you must record the following information on the Personalised Care Plan Manager screen:

- Record the Assigned and Accountable GP See Assign a Named GP to the patient (page 17).
- Record Personal Care Offered See *Record Personal Care Plan Offered* (page 18).
- Print a Letter of Invitation See *Print the Invitation Letter* (page 18).
- Add the patient to the Admissions Risk Register See Add the Patient to the Personalised Care Manager Register (page 19).

IMPORTANT - To save the information on the Template you must click the **Save and Close** icon. If you do not choose Save and Close your data will not be saved.

Assign a Named GP to the patient

All patients placed on the Personal Care Plan Register must have a nominated (assigned) GP.

Currently, it is not possible to filter and add the Usual or Registered GP on the template. So to identify and report on the named GP it is recommended that you create a pre-defined list of GP's and allocate a GP number to each GP eg GP01 is Dr Brown, GP02 is Dr Jones etc.

To setup and allocate a named GP:

1. Click the **Codese**t ^[]] icon on the **Name and Accountable GP** line.

To Assign a Named GP to this patient:		
Select a GP ID Code from the Drop Down	Click the Codeset icon	
For Example:	click the codeset iton.	
GP01 Dr Bro wn		
Named and Accountable GP	No Data Recorded	



2. Click the **Comment**s

Comments button.

🛄 Codeset Codes										
🖪 d	A C	omments	>> Sho	ow More						
Apply	Priority	Episode T	уре	Event De					1	Value
V				31/05/2	Click Comments			al care pln accept		
V				31/05/2	00				e plan offered	
				31/05/2	014	8lAe.	Personal	ca	re plan declined	

Selecting Comments

3. To enter a new comment start typing eg GP01 Dr Brown. If you press return you move to a new line as if you are creating a new comment. Once all the GP's are entered, click **OK** to save the changes.



Creating a pre-defined GP list.

Note - The Comments button is a practice wide setting, so it may contain other non-related comments.

4. Next, tick the **Apply** box alongside the Read code **67DJ** - **Informed Patient Accountable GP.** 5. Click the drop down **Comments** box and choose the nominated GP from the list.

Codeset Codes Comments >> Show More				Click the select th	e drop de ne nomin	own Cor nated Gl	nments box and P.		×
Apply	Priority	Episode Typ	Event Date	Read Code	Description	Value	Comments 🔪		
V			31/05/2014	67DJ.	Infrm pt nam			-	
							GP01 Dr Brown GP02 Dr Jones		

Selecting a GP Number between one and twenty

6. Click **OK**.

Important - You must always use the same GP number for each GP so that it is unique to that GP eg GP001 is always Dr Brown.

Print the Invitation Letter

1. To print the invitation letter select the link on the screen to "*Click Here to Access and Print the letter of Invitation*."

Offer Patient Inclusion on the Admission Risk Register, Generate the Letter of Invitation Below if Required:

Personal Care Plan Status	23/05/2014: Personal care plan offered	× 🛄 🝙
Click HERE to Access and Print the Le	tter of Invitation	

Personalised Care Plan Invitation Letter

- 2. Microsoft Word opens and the invitation letter displays with the patient demographic information automatically populated.
- 3. Click **Print** to print the letter.
- 4. Close the Word document. If you alter the document you are prompted to save the changes click **Yes**.

Note - The letter is taken from the DES template and can be amended. For more information see the on-screen help for BlueBayCT Template Design.

Record Personal Care Plan Offered

- 1. To place the patient on the register you need to record that you have invited the patient to enrol on the avoidance admission register, to do this;
- 2. Click the **Codeset** \fbox icon at the end of Personal Care Plan Offered line.

		Click the Codeset icon.	
Offer Patient Inclusion on the Admission R Generate the Letter of Invitation Below if			
Personal Care Plan Offered	No Data Recorded	8	· 🛄 🕫

Personalised Care Plan Manager - Offer

3. Tick the apply box alongside the Read code **9NS5 - Personal Care Plan offered.**

Codeset Codes									
Q. (🞑 🚑 Comments >> Show More								
Apply	Priority	Episode Type	Event Date	Read Code	Description	Value	Comments		
			28/07/2014	9NS5.	Personal care plan offered				

Offered Read code

4. Click **OK** to save the changes.

Add the Patient to the Personalised Care Manager Register

You must also add the patient to the Admissions Risk Register.

1. Click the **Codeset** ^{III} icon on the **Admissions Risk Register - Add** line.

Add/Remove Patient from the Admission Risk Register



Admissions Risk Register - Add

- 2. Place a tick in the **Apply** box alongside the Read code **8CV4 Admission Avoidance care started,** optionally change the date.
- 3. Click **OK.**

Index

Α

Access the Personalised Care Manager Register for each patient • 14, 15 Add the Patient to the Personalised Care Manager Register • 17, 19 Applying the QAdmission Stratification Calculator • 11 Assign a Named GP to the patient • 16, 17

С

Copyright Notice • ii Create a Personalised Care Plan Manager Register • 5, 6, 15

D

Download Unplanned Admissions Outcomes Manager • 5, 6, 7

G

Getting Started • 5

I

Identify Eligible Patients • 5, 6, 8

Ρ

Prerequisites • 5 Print the Invitation Letter • 17, 18

R

Record Personal Care Plan Offered • 16, 19 Reviewing the Admissions Risk Stratification and Register Manager Report • 5, 6, 14

T

The Stratification Tool • 5, 6, 10, 11

U

Unplanned Admissions Outcomes Manager - Getting Started • 5

W

What this Guide Covers • 5 What you need to do by 31st July 2014 • 5, 6